
ADDENDUM NO. 1 

 

TO THE REQUEST FOR COMPETITIVE SEALED PROPOSALS FOR: 

DELAWARE COUNTY REGIONAL SEWER DISTRICT 

BIOSOLIDS HAULING AND DISPOSAL SERVICES 

ISSUE DATE: November 14, 2025 

 

Contractors submitting Proposals for the above-named Project shall take note of the following 

changes, additions, deletions, clarifications, etc. in the Contract Documents, which shall become 

a part of and have precedence over anything contrarily shown or described in the Contract 

Documents, and all such shall be taken into consideration and be included in the Contractor’s 

Proposal. Where changes, additions, deletions, clarifications, etc. are made to portions of an 

article, paragraph, or subparagraph, the unaltered provisions of that article, paragraph, 

subparagraph, or clause shall remain in effect. 

 

RECEIPT OF THIS ADDENDUM MUST BE ACKNOWLEDGED BY ENTRY OF THE 

ADDENDUM NUMBER IN THE REQUISITE SPACE ON THE PROPOSAL FORM. FAILURE 

OF A FIRM TO ACKNOWLEDGE THIS ADDENDUM MAY CAUSE THE PROPOSAL TO BE 

REJECTED AS INCOMPLETE. 

 
Reason for the Addendum 

 

1. To include November 12th Offerors Conference Minutes and presentation slides. 
2. To provide answers to questions asked during RFP.  

 
Revisions are noted in BOLD below: 

Questions and Answers 

 
Q:  At Alum Creek Water Reclamation Facility (ACWRF), is there just one loading station? 

Would the contractor need to leave a trailer there?  
A:  Yes, ACWRF has one loading station. Currently, the contractor leaves one empty trailer on 

site. The County moves the trailer, fills it, and parks it for the contractor’s driver to pick up. 
The County will work with the awarded contractor to determine a method that works. 

 

Q:  Does the contractor currently use a 35-ton trailer at all locations? 
A:  The current contractor uses a 35-ton trailer at ACWRF and Olentangy Environmental 

Control Center (OECC). The County also uses its own drivers and trucks: a 24-ton trailer at 
ACWRF and a 15-ton dump truck at Lower Scioto Water Reclamation Facility (LSWRF). 

 

Q:  What are the dimensions of the loadout out area for trucks for each of the three plants? 
A:  Architectural drawings of the loadout areas are provided as an attachment to Addendum 1. 
 

Q:  Is a trailer needed at LSWRF? 
A:  The County currently hauls 100% of the biosolids from LSWRF using a dump truck. 
 

Q:  Will the County split the award between different contractors?  
A:  The RFP states that awards may be made in whole or in part to one or more offerors, and 

in the event that multiple contracts are awarded, the services provided shall be on a non-



exclusive basis as set forth in the contract. The reason that the County has reserved the 
right to award the bid to more than one offeror is that we do not have biosolids storage and 
want to ensure that hauling and disposal outlets will be available. 

 

Q:  Will the County be open to proposals of a longer duration contract? 
A:  The period of this contract will be two (2) years, with the option to extend for up to three (3) 

additional one (1) years terms if mutually agreeable by both the County and Contractor.. 
The reason for this contract term that the County is currently performing a Biosolids Master 
Plan and other WWTP improvements that will change the biosolids generated in the next 
three to five years. Proposed improvements at ACWRF are expected to increase the 
average percent solids to 20%, with construction anticipated to begin in late 2027. 

 

Q:  Is the allowable price adjustment based on the Consumer Price Index (CPI) six months 
before the end of the contract year, or the average CPI over the prior six months? 

A:  The contract price may be adjusted once per each additional one-year contract extension 
based on the latest CPI-U index published and available on the date one hundred eighty 
(180) days prior to the end of the contract year.  

 

Q:  Does participation in this call make sure we get any addendums? 
A:  We will email any addenda to all persons that requested to be on this call. Addenda will 

also be posted on Delaware County’s web page at https://co.delaware.oh.us/ under the 
heading Public Notices and Bids and on the Delaware County Regional Sewer District web 
page at https://regionalsewer.co.delaware.oh.us/bids/ 

 

Q:  Can you share who is on the list of potential offerors? 
A:  There is no list of potential bidders, the bid was advertised on the County website and is a 

publicly available file with no tracking of holders. 
 

Q:  How fast can the County load solids at each of the plants? 
A:  Approximate loading times are as follows: 

• ACWRF loads the County’s 24-ton trailer in 5.5 to 7 hours. 
• ACWRF loads the current contractor’s 35-ton trailer in 10.5 to 12 hours. 
• OECC loads the current contractor’s 35-ton trailer in 30 hours. 
• LSWRF loads the County’s 15-ton dump truck in 45 hours. 

 
Q:  How many loads per week from each plant are currently taken out? 
A:  Current average loads per week: 

• ACWRF averages nine loads per week, primarily by 24-ton trailers. Approximately 1/3 
are 35-ton trailers. 

• OECC averages three loads per week by 35-ton trailers. 
• LSWRF averages one load every two weeks by 15-ton dump truck. 

 

Q:  Who holds the current contract and could we get a copy of the current contract as well as 
the bid results from the last bid? 

A:  Rumpke of Ohio, Inc. holds the current contract. Bid results from the last 2021 Biosolids 
Hauling and Disposal RFP are provided as an attachment to Addendum 1. 

 

Q:  Is there a limit to weight of loads leaving the plants? 
A:  The weight of loads is limited by size of County trucks and regulations on the size and 

weight of Offeror’s trucks.  Proper hauling permits and licenses are the sole responsibility of 
the contracted firm. Scales are not available at the plant locations. 



 

Q:  What percentage of the hauling is done by the County vs Contractor at each the facilities? 
A:  The current contractor hauls 100% of OECC loads and approximately 1/3 of ACWRF loads. 

Approximately 50% of the total biosolids were hauled by the contractor in 2024. 

Attachments 

 
1. Offerors Conference minutes 
2. Offerors Conference presentation slides 
3. Architectural drawings of the load out areas 
4. Bid results of 2021 Biosolids Hauling and Disposal RFP 

 
END OF ADDENDUM 



Attachment 1. Offerors Conference 

minutes 
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Minutes 

Meeting name:  Offerors Conference for Biosolids Hauling and Disposal Services  

Owner:  Delaware County Regional Sewer District (DCRSD) 

Meeting date: November 12, 2025 

Time:  11:00 AM 

Location:  Microsoft Teams 

 

1. Introductions 

• Erik McPeek - DCRSD Deputy Director of Operations 

• Julie McGill - DCRSD Staff Engineer  

2. The purpose of this conference call is to review the background, purpose, and schedule of the Request 

for Proposals (RFP); provide a photo tour of existing biosolids facilities; and provide an opportunity for 

questions about the facilities or RFP instructions. 

3. RFP Purpose 

• To solicit cost proposals for the hauling and/or disposal of biosolids generated from the County’s 

wastewater treatment facilities. 

• Disposal service Offerors would receive undigested and dewatered biosolids from the County’s nine 

WWTPs at their privately-owned beneficial re-use or disposal facility, not including land application 

disposal. The County is not interested in land application for this contract. 

• Hauling service Offerors would be responsible for providing a driver and semi-tractor with open, 

self-unloading trailer or dump truck, delivery of the trailer or dump trunk to the WWTP for loading by 

the County, hauling to the re-use or disposal facility, and offloading. 

• This is the basic scope of work that we are looking for, but we welcome any changes or suggestions 

on how to approach this project 

4. Schedule 

• Deadline for Submitting Questions – November 18, 2025 at 12:00 pm 

• Proposal Due Date – November 25, 2025 at 12:00 pm 

• Estimated Notice of Award – December 2025 

5. Photo Tour of Facilities – See Offerors Conference slides attached to Addendum No. 1 

6. Questions 

• See Addendum No. 1 for Questions and Answers 

• Any additional questions can be emailed directly to Erik McPeek at emcpeek@co.delaware.oh.us 

7. Attendees 

• Blake Austin 

• Walter Ferguson 

• Nancy Leah Kidd  

• Clint Pemberton 

• Mohasin Shaikh 



Attachment 2. Offerors Conference 

presentation slides 

  



Delaware County 
Regional Sewer District 
Biosolids Hauling and Disposal Services
Pre-Proposal Conference



Introductions
• Erik McPeek, Deputy Director of Operations
• Julie McGill, Staff Engineer



Agenda
• Background & Purpose of RFP
• Bid Schedule
• Existing Biosolids Facilities
• Questions



DCRSD Highlights
• 43,700 Users = 127,000 Residents
• 9 Wastewater Treatment Facilities

– Alum Creek WRF:  10 MGD
– OECC:  6 MGD
– Lower Scioto: 1.4 MGD

• 32 Pump Stations
• 550 Miles of Sewer



Purpose of the Request for Proposal
• To solicit cost proposals for the hauling and/or disposal of 

biosolids generated from the County’s wastewater treatment 
facilities

• Disposal service Offerors would receive undigested and 
dewatered biosolids from the County’s nine (9) wastewater 
treatment plants (WWTPs) at their privately-owned beneficial 
re-use or disposal facility, not including land application 
disposal

• Hauling service Offerors would be responsible for providing a 
driver and semi-tractor with open, self-unloading trailer or 
dump truck, delivery of the trailer or dump trunk to the WWTP 
for loading by the County, hauling to the re-use or disposal 
facility, and offloading.



Purpose of the Request for Proposal
• Proposals may include one or more plans for providing hauling 

and/or disposal services

• DCRSD will evaluate plans for:
– hauling services only
– disposal services only
– both services

• Each plan should include the per unit fees (cost per wet ton) 
for each contract year (2026 and 2027)

• Option to extend up to three (3) additional one-year terms 
with price adjustment based on the Consumer Price Index 
(CPI-U, not seasonally adjusted, U.S. city average, All items)



Bid Schedule

Advertisement of RFP October 28, 2025 

Offerors Conference (Virtual) November 12, 2025

Deadline for Submitting Questions November 18, 2025 @ 12:00 pm

Proposal Due Date November 25, 2025 @ 12:00 pm

Estimated Notice of Award December 2025



ALUM CREEK WATER 
RECLAMATION FACILITY

Existing Biosolids Facilities:



ACWRF
Sludge 
Storage

• Aerobic digestion 
& land 
application 
discontinued in 
2007

• All 9 tanks 
retrofitted with 
diffusers since 
2015

• Currently use 3 
tanks for WAS 
storage

Solids Handling Building

Sludge Storage 
Tanks



ACWRF
Sludge 
Storage

• 3.4 million gal 
liquid sludge 
hauled annually 
from package 
plants

• 10% hauled by 
contractors

• Liquid hauling 
will drop to 1.7 
million gal after 
2025 Scioto 
Reserve WRF 
decommissioning

Solids Handling 
Building

Liquid Sludge 
Connection



ACWRF
Dewatering

• Waste activated 
sludge (WAS) is 
dewatered with 
2-meter 
Komline-
Sanderson belt 
filter press

• Thickener on the 
left is unused 
and inoperative 

Belt Filter PressThickener
(inoperative)



ACWRF
Dewatering

• Belt filter press  
is 25 years old

• Can also be used 
for thickening

• Dewatered cake 
is 13-15% solids

Belt Filter Press



ACWRF
Conveyor

• Dewatered cake  
is conveyed by 
Serpentix
conveyor directly 
to adjacent truck 
loading facility

• No cake storage 
available on site



ACWRF
Truck Loading 
& Disposal

• Truck must be 
moved for even 
loading

• No scales

• Average 9 loads 
per week

• Disposal at 
Crawford County 
Landfill



OLENTANGY ENVIRONMENTAL 
CONTROL CENTER

Existing Biosolids Facilities:



OECC Sludge 
Storage

• 12 Sludge 
storage tanks, 
no digestion

• Tanks can also 
be used as 
equalization 
storage

Sludge Blower Building

Sludge Storage Tanks



OECC
Rotary Drum 
Thickener 
(RDT)

• Wasting is 
continuous to 
RDT

• Up to 4% solids 
discharged into 
thickened waste 
activated sludge 
tanks

Rotary Drum Thickeners



OECC
TWAS Storage

• Two thickened 
waste activated 
sludge (TWAS) 
tanks available

• Normally one 
tank in service

• TWAS tanks 
mixed with 
mixer, no air

TWAS Tanks



OECC 
Dewatering

• Original Andritz
centrifuge added 
in 2009

• Second 
centrifuge added 
in 2025 for 
redundancy

• Makes an 
average of 19-
20% cake

Original Centrifuge (2009)

New Centrifuge (2025)

Conveyor Belt to Truck Bay



OECC Truck Loading
• No cake storage at facility

• Centrifuge discharges onto conveyor and into trailer

• All biosolids hauled by a contractor, 3 loads per week, to landfill

Centrifuge Building

Truck Bay

Conveyor Belt



LOWER SCIOTO WATER 
RECLAMATION FACILITY

Existing Biosolids Facilities:



LSWRF 
Sludge 
Storage

• Built in 2007

• Began operation 
in 2017

• WAS is pumped 
to two aerobic 
covered digesters

• Additional 
biosolids can be 
brought for 
digestion and 
dewatering, but 
are not currently

Covered Aerobic Digesters



LSWRF 
Dewatering

• Centrisys
centrifuge

• Cake averages 
about 21% solids

Centrisys Centrifuge

Screw Conveyor to Truck Bay



LSWRF 
Truck 
Loading

• One load approx. 
every two weeks, 
hauled by the 
County

• Currently dispose 
of 274 wet tons 
per year

• Flow will more 
than double after 
Scioto Reserve 
WRF is taken 
offline

Solids Handling Building

Screw Conveyor



Questions



Attachment 3. Architectural drawings of 

the load out areas 

  



Alum Creek Water Reclamation Facility 

  



Olentangy Environmental Control Center 

  



Lower Scioto Water Reclamation Facility 

  



Attachment 4. Contract and Bid results of 

2021 Biosolids Hauling and Disposal RFP 


